
Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Board Meetings
Board Meeting - May 21, 2025

Agenda

Agenda ............................................................................................................................ 2

Consent Agenda

Meeting Minutes - April 16, 2025 ................................................................................... 6
Credit Card Statement - April 2025 ............................................................................. 11
Condition Code 44 ........................................................................................................ 17
Discharge Planning for the Hospitalized Patient ...................................................... 20
Informed Consent Policy – Practitioner’s Responsibility ........................................ 24
Management of the Behavioral Health Patient (5150 and non-5150) ....................... 26
Medical Staff Department Policy – Outpatient Medicine .......................................... 31
Patient Safety Attendant or 1:1 Staffing Guidelines ................................................. 33
Patient Valuables .......................................................................................................... 35
Plan for the Provision of Social Services at NIHD .................................................... 37
Utility System Failure-Elevator ................................................................................... 39
Pharmacy Hazardous Drugs Receiving, Storage, Compounding and Transpor .... 41

Cybersecurity

Cybersecurity - Term Sheet ......................................................................................... 44

Board Self-Assesment

2025 Board Self-Assessment Summary ..................................................................... 46

Marketing Report

Marketing Report .......................................................................................................... 75

Quarterly Compliance Report

Quarterly Compliance Report ..................................................................................... 76

Chief Financial Officer Report

Department Update .................................................................................................... 118
CFO Report Financial Summary and Operation Insights - March 2025 ................ 121
NIHD Financial Summary March 2025 ...................................................................... 124
NIHD KPIs FYE March 2025 ....................................................................................... 127
NIHD Financial Update March 2025 .......................................................................... 129
NIHD Financial Statements Mar 2025 ....................................................................... 140

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

Page 1 of 143

http://www.tcpdf.org


  

 
AGENDA 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS - REGULAR MEETING 

 
May 21, 2025, 5:00 pm 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District invites you to join this meeting 
 

Connect via Zoom: (A link is also available on the NIHD Website)  
https://zoom.us/j/213497015?pwd=TDlIWXRuWjE4T1Y2YVFWbnF2aGk5UT09 
Meeting ID: 213 497 015 
Password: 608092 
 
Phone Connection: 
888 475 4499 US Toll-free 
877 853 5257 US Toll-free 
Meeting ID: 213 497 015 
 
The Board meets in person at 2957 Birch Street, Bishop, CA 93514. Members of the public will be 
allowed to attend in person or via Zoom. Public comments can be made in person or via Zoom.   
 
 
Board Member David McCoy Barrett will participate in the meeting via teleconference from the 
following location, in accordance with Government Code § 54953(b): 

61 Yorkville Ave 
Toronto, ON M5R 3V6, Canada 

 
This teleconference location will be accessible to the public, and the agenda will be posted at this location 
at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting. Members of the public may attend and participate from this 
location. All votes taken during the meeting will be conducted by roll call. 
 
 

1. Call to Order at 5:00 pm 

2. Public Comment: The purpose of public comment is to allow members of the public to address the 

Board of Directors. Public comments shall be received at the beginning of the meeting and are 

limited to three (3) minutes per speaker, with a total time limit of thirty (30) minutes for all public 

comments unless otherwise modified by the Chair. Speaking time may not be granted and/or 

loaned to another individual for purposes of extending available speaking time unless 

arrangements have been made in advance for a large group of speakers to have a spokesperson 

speak on their behalf. Comments must be kept brief and non-repetitive. The general Public 

Page 2 of 143



Page, 2, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, August 21, 2024 
 
 

Comment portion of the meeting allows the public to address any item within the jurisdiction of 

the Board of Directors on matters not appearing on the agenda. Public comments on agenda items 

should be made at the time each item is considered.  

 
 

3. Public comments on closed session items 

4. Adjournment to closed session to/for:  

a. Threat to Public Services or Facilities 

Pursuant to Government Code § 54957(a) 

Subject: Consultation with security consultant regarding cybersecurity threats to critical 

infrastructure systems 

5. Return to open session and report on any actions taken in closed session. 

 
 

6. Consent Agenda – All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and will be 

enacted by one motion unless any member of the Board wishes to remove an item for discussion.  

a. Approval of minutes for April 16, 2025, Regular Board Meeting 

b. CEO Credit Card Statement 

c. Approval of Policies and Procedures  

i. Condition Code 44 

ii. Discharge Planning for the Hospitalized Patient 

iii. Informed Consent Policy – Practitioner’s Responsibility  

iv. Management of the Behavioral Health Patient (5150 and non-5150)  

v. Medical Staff Department Policy – Outpatient Medicine 

vi. Patient Valuables 

vii. Patient Safety Attendant or 1:1 Staffing Guidelines 

viii. Pharmacy Hazardous Drugs: Receiving, Storage, Compounding and Transporting 

ix. Plan for the Provision of Social Services at NIHD 

x. Utility System Failure-Elevator 

 
 

7. New Business:  

a. Cybersecurity Contract – Action Item  

Page 3 of 143



Page, 3, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, August 21, 2024 
 
 

b. Board Self-Assessment – Information Item 

c. Board Meeting Location – Information Item 

d. Marketing Report – Information Item 

e. Quarterly Compliance Report – Action Item  

f. Chief of Staff Report, Sierra Bourne MD 

i. Medical Executive Committee Meeting Report – Information Item 

g. Chief Executive Officer Report 

i. CEO Comments – Information Item 

h. Chief Human Resources Officer / Chief Business Development Officer 

i. AB 2561 (McKinnor): Local public employees: vacant positions 

i. Chief Financial Officer Report 

i. Department Update – Information Item 

ii. Financial & Statistical Reports (Board will consider the approval of these reports) 

8. General Information from Board Members (Board will provide this information)  

 
 

9. Public comments on closed session items 

10. Adjournment to closed session to/for:  

a. Conference Concerning Trade Secrets 

Pursuant to Health and Safety Code § 32106 and Civil Code § 3426.1 

Subject: Discussion of a new service line 

Estimated Date of Public Disclosure: September 2025 

b. Conference with Labor Negotiator 

Pursuant to Government Code § 54957.6 

Agency Designated Representative: Northern Inyo Healthcare District Chief Human 

Resources Officer 

Employee Organization: AFSCME Council 57 

c. Public Employee Appointment / Discussion 

Pursuant to Government Code § 54957(b)(1) 

Title: Chief Executive Officer Candidate 

Page 4 of 143



Page, 4, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, August 21, 2024 
 
 

d. Public Employee Performance Evaluation 

Pursuant to Government Code § 54957(b)(1) 

Title: Interim Chief Executive Officer 

11. Return to open session and report on any actions taken in closed session. 

12. Adjournment 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special accommodations to participate in a 

District Board meeting, please contact the administration at (760) 873-2838 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.   

Page 5 of 143



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            April 16, 2025 
Regular Meeting  Page 1 of 5 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Board Chair Turner called the 

meeting to order at 5:00 pm.  
 

PRESENT Jean Turner, Chair 
Melissa Best-Baker, Vice Chair 
David McCoy Barrett, Treasurer 
Laura Smith, Member at Large 
 
Allison Partridge, Acting Chief Executive Officer / Chief Operations Officer /  
     Chief Nursing Officer 
Adam Hawkins, DO, Chief Medical Officer 
Andrea Mossman, Chief Financial Officer  
 

ABSENT 
 

David Lent, Secretary 
Alison Murray, Chief Human Resources Officer, Chief Business Development  
     Officer 
Sierra Bourne, MD, Chief of Staff  
 

TELECONFERENCING Notice has been posted and a quorum participated from locations within the 
jurisdiction.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT Chair Turner reported that at this time, audience members may speak on any 
items not on the agenda that are within the jurisdiction of the Board.  
 
A member of the public inquired about:  

1. Orthopedics' current state 
2. Suspension of Dr. Loy 

 
Chair Turner stated:  

1. The District will provide an update on the Orthopedics Department at a 
future meeting.  

2. The District is obligated to maintain confidentiality regarding personnel 
matters and cannot comment on individual employment actions.  

 
INTERIM CEO CONTRACT 
 

Chair Turner called attention to the Interim CEO Contract.  
 
Chair Turner called attention to the material compensation in the Interim CEO 
Contract.  

1. Annual compensation $518,481.60 
2. Start Date: April 28, 2025 
3. Term: Four months, with the option to move to a month-to-month 

arrangement thereafter  
4. Travel Reimbursement: Reimbursable travel between Bishop and the 

CEO’s primary residence at the start and end of service, based on the 
IRS-approved mileage rates 

5. Employee Benefits: Eligibility for the same benefits as all other 
employees  

6. Severance: One month's salary 

Page 6 of 143



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            April 16, 2025 
Regular Meeting  Page 2 of 5 
 

 
Discussion ensued.  
 
Motion to approve the Interim CEO Contract: Barrett 
2nd: Best-Baker 
Passed: 4-0 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON 
CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 
 

There were no comments from the public. 
 

ADJOURNMENT TO 
CLOSED SESSION  
 

Adjournment to closed session at 5:08 pm 
 

RETURN TO OPEN 
SESSION 
 

Called back to order at 6:08 pm 
 
Chair Turner stated there were no reportable actions from the closed session. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Chair Turner called attention to the Consent Agenda.  
 
Motion to approve the consent agenda: Best Baker 
2nd: Smith  
Passed: 4-0 
 

CHIEF OF STAFF 
REPORTS 

Motion to approve Medical Staff Initial Appointments: Best Baker 
2nd: Barrett 
Passed: 4-0 
 
Motion to approve Medical Staff Initial Appointments Proxy Credentialing: 
Best Baker 
2nd: Smith  
Passed: 4-0 
 

NEW BUSINESS  
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER REPORT 
 

 
 
Chair Turner called attention to the CEO report.  
 
Approving the Deposit and Investment of Funds to Eligible Certificates of 
Deposit and the Local Agency Investment Funds  

1. Removed from the agenda will be added in a future meeting. 
 
ACHD recertification  

1. Recertification was completed in January 2025. 
 
Pharmacy Project  

1. It is in the final stages and preparing for the final submission for the 
license and certification.  

 
Stereotactic mammography  

Page 7 of 143



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            April 16, 2025 
Regular Meeting  Page 3 of 5 
 

1. The new machine provides advanced technology and comfort for 
patients. The goal is that the machine will be up and running at the end 
of the week.  

 
Employee of the month 

1.  March 2025, the employee of the month was Leroy Charley, who is 
team-focused and has a great attitude.  

2. April 2025, the employee of the month was Terry Tye, a patient, and his 
peers recognized him for his echocardiography program.  

 
CHIEF MEDICAL OFFICER 
REPORT 

Chair Turner called attention to the CMO report.  
 
Discussion ensued.  

1. Highlighted the Hantavirus Awareness, Prevention and Protection talk 
on zoom, April 17, 2025 @ 5:30 pm. 

2. CMO Hawkins drew attention to the Hantavirus Article.  
 

CHIEF FINANCIAL 
OFFICER REPORT 
 

Chair Turner introduced the Chief Financial Officer Report.  
 
Audit of Financial Statements  
 
Discussion ensued.  
 
Public Comments:  
Debt-to-Capitalization Ratio and Pension Liabilities  

1. Does our debt-to-capitalization ratio include pension liabilities?  
a. Yes, the debt-to-capitalization ratio includes pension liabilities.  

Interest on Retired Bonds 
2. We have $576k in interest on the retired bonds—can you clarify how 

this was missed in both last year’s and the prior year’s financials? 
a. The interest was missed in previous years because the accounting 

for the bond was not set up properly. The debt was extinguished this 
year, the auditing process revealed that a reserve remained on our 
ledger for a bond that had already been closed. This oversight 
wasn’t identified until the auditors conducted their review and 
flagged the discrepancy. 

Accounting Concerns with Other Bonds 
3. Are there any similar accounting issues or unresolved reserves 

associated with other bonds currently held by the district? 
a. At this time, there are no known similar issues with other bonds held 

by the district. However, as part of our ongoing audit and 
reconciliation efforts, we are reviewing all bond-related accounts to 
ensure accuracy and prevent any future discrepancies. 

Clarification on Margin Improvement 
4. What factors contribute to the change from the operating loss margin to 

the overall positive margin? It was implied that this change came 
primarily from taxpayer funding; my understanding is that only 1% of 
the revenue is from taxpayer contributions. Can you clarify the actual 
sources of this margin improvement? 

Page 8 of 143



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            April 16, 2025 
Regular Meeting  Page 4 of 5 
 

a. The change from the operating loss margin to the overall positive 
margin is mainly due to IGT funding, quality funding, and taxpayer 
contributions. While taxpayer contributions account for less than 1% 
of total revenue, the majority of the improvement comes from IGT 
and quality funding. 

 
Motion to approve the Audit of Financial Statements: Smith 
2nd: Best-Baker  
Passed: 4-0 
 
Financial Statement and Supplemental Information  
 
Discussion ensued.  
 
Motion to approve Financial Statement and Supplemental Information: Best-
Baker 
2nd: Smith 
Passed: 4-0 
 
Financial and Statistical Reports  
 
Discussion ensued. 
 
Motion to approve Financial and Statistical Reports: Best-Baker 
2nd: Barrett 
Passed: 4-0 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
FROM BOARD MEMBERS 
 

Director Smith expressed appreciation that the meetings were covered in the 
local paper, recognizing the value of public awareness and transparency. 
 
Director Best-Baker expressed appreciation for NIHD's presentation at the City 
Council meeting, acknowledging the positive reception and support from the 
council members. 
 
Chair Turner emphasized that the organization does not aim to turn people 
away from receiving services. The primary focus is on enhancing the district's 
financial sustainability and ensuring the long-term viability of the District.  
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Adjournment at 7:37 pm. 

 
 

______________________________ 
Jean Turner 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District  
Chair 

 
 

Attest: ______________________________ 

Page 9 of 143



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            April 16, 2025 
Regular Meeting  Page 5 of 5 
 

David Lent 
Northern Inyo Healthcare District Chair  

Secretary  
 

Page 10 of 143



Page 11 of 143



Page 12 of 143



Nurse Awards

Med Staff

Hospital Week 

Med Staff

Med Staff

IT Subscription 

interpretive Services 

Kids Day 

Kids Day 

Med Staff

Med Staff
Nurses Week 

Med Staff

City of Hope Lunch

CNO

Med Staff

Med Staff

Med Staff 

Med Staff

Med Staff

Med Staff

Med Staff

Nurses Week

Page 13 of 143



Med Staff

Med Staff

Med Staff

Med Staff

Med Staff

Med Staff

Med Staff

Med Staff

Med Staff
Med Staff

Med Staff

Med Staff

Med Staff

Med Staff

Med Staff

Marketing

Med Staff

Med Staff

Page 14 of 143



Page 15 of 143



Page 16 of 143



 

 
Page 1 of 3 

Condition Code 44 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
CLINICAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
 
 

Title: Condition Code 44 
Owner: DON Inpatient Services Department: Case Management 
Scope: Inpatient Departments 
Date Last Modified: 01/06/2025 Last Review Date: No Review 

Date 
Version: 1 

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors  Original Approval Date:  
 
PURPOSE: 
The Centers of Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) established Condition Code 44 to address relatively 
infrequent occasions, such as late-night or weekend admission when case management is not staffed, when 
internal review subsequently determines that an inpatient admission does not meet hospital criteria and that the 
patient would have been registered under observation status under ordinary circumstances. In no case may a 
non-physician make a final determination that a patient’s stay is not medically necessary or inappropriate. 
However, CMS encourages and expects hospitals to employ case management staff to facilitate the application 
of hospital admission protocols and criteria, to facilitate communication between practitioners and Utilization 
Review (UR) Chair and to assist the Utilization Review Chair in the decision making process. Use of Condition 
Code 44 is not intended to serve as a substitute for adequate staffing of utilization management staff or for 
continued education of physicians and hospital staff about existing admission protocols. As education and 
staffing efforts continue to progress, the need for hospital to correct inappropriate admissions and to report 
Condition Code 44 should become increasingly rare. 
 
POLICY: 
Condition Code 44 is used in cases where the UR Chair or, if UR chair is unavailable, UR Committee member 
in conjunction with the attending provider determines that an inpatient admission does not meet the hospital’s 
inpatient criteria per Interqual. The hospital changes the beneficiary’s status from inpatient to observation status 
and submits an observation status claim for medically necessary Medicare Part B services that were furnished to 
the beneficiary, provided all of the following conditions are met:  

1. The change in patient status from inpatient to observation is made prior to discharge or release, while the 
beneficiary is still a patient of the hospital; and 

2. The hospital has not submitted a claim to Medicare for the inpatient admission; and 
3. A physician concurs with the decision made by the UR Chair or UR Committee member; and 
4. The physician’s concurrence with the decision made by the UR Chair or UR Committee member is 

documented in the patient’s medical record. 
 
A written notice regarding the change in the patient’s admission status must be provided to the hospital, patient, 
and physician responsible for the care of the patient no later than two days after the determination is made. 
 
Condition Code 44 is used by CMS to track and monitor these occurrences. The reporting of Condition Code 44 
on a claim does not affect the amount of the payment that would otherwise be made for a hospital observation 
status claim that did not require the reporting of Condition Code 44. 
 

Page 17 of 143



 

 
Page 2 of 3 

Condition Code 44 

Entries in the medical record cannot be expunged or deleted and must be retained in their original form. 
Therefore, all orders and all entries related to the inpatient admission must be retained in the record in their 
original form. If a patient’s status changes, the medical record, with complete orders and notes that indicate why 
the change was made, the care that was furnished to the beneficiary and the participants in making the decision 
to change the patient’s status, must be noted in the record. 
 
PROCEDURE: 
Medical Staff 
One of the requirements for the use of Condition Code 44 is physician concurrence with the determination that 
an inpatient admission does not meet the hospital’s admission criteria that the patient should have been 
registered as an observation patient. The physician responsible for the care of the patient must be consulted and 
allowed to present their views to the UR Chair or UR Committee Member to determine if the admission is not 
medically necessary. It may also be appropriate to include the practitioner who admitted the patient if this is a 
different person than the practitioner responsible for the care of the patient. 
 
When the physician responsible for the care of the patient concurs, then he/she must document in the medical record 
with a change in patient status order. In Cerner, this would be a PSO. This order must be entered by the 
admitting/attending physician. The order must indicate to change the patient status from inpatient to observation. 

Case Management 
The Case Manager (CM) will consult with the physician responsible for the care of the patient 
 
When the physician responsible for the care of the patient concurs with the UR Chair/UR Committee member 
decision that the patient status should be changed from inpatient to observation, the Case Manager will ascertain 
that the following conditions are met and fully documented in the medical record: 

1. The change in patient status from inpatient to observation is made prior to discharge or release, while the 
beneficiary is still a patient of the hospital; and 

2. The hospital has not submitted a claim to Medicare for the inpatient admission; and 
3. A physician concurs with the UR Chair/UR Committee member, and 
4. The physician’s concurrence with UR Chair/UR Committee member’s decision is documented in the 

patient’s medical record. 
5. A written notice regarding the change to the patient’s status will be given to the patient, to the provider, 

and a copy will be placed in the medical record. Additionally, Case Management will document in the 
medical record that the change has occurred. 
 

If all the above conditions are met and fully documented in the medical record, the Case Manager will notify 
Registration that patient status has been changed and record on shared spreadsheet with Revenue Cycle. 
Following this notification, Registration will provide the Medicare Outpatient Observation Notice (MOON) to 
the patient. 
 
If a UR committee member was consulted in place of the UR Chair and the physician responsible for the care of 
the patient does not concur with the decision of the UR committee member, the case will be forwarded to the 
UR Chair for review. If the UR Chair confirms that inpatient status is not appropriate, the determination 
regarding medical necessity is final. Condition code 44 will be applicable in this situation.  
 
 
 
 

Page 18 of 143



 

 
Page 3 of 3 

Condition Code 44 

REFERENCES: 
1. 42 Code Federal Register 482.12 & 482.30 
2. Medicare Claims Processing Manual, Chapter 1, sections 50.3.1 & 50.3.2 
3. Medicare Benefit Policy Manual, Chapter 6, Section 10 
 
CROSS REFERENCE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES: 
 
Supersedes: Not Set 

 

Page 19 of 143



 

Page 1 of 4 
Discharge Planning for the Hospitalized Patient 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
CLINICAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
 
 

Title: Discharge Planning for the Hospitalized Patient 
Owner: DON Inpatient Services Department: Acute/Subacute Unit 
Scope:  Emergency Department, Acute/Subacute, Perinatal, Intensive Care Unit 
Date Last Modified: 01/16/2025 Last Review Date: No Review 

Date 
Version: 3 

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors  Original Approval Date:  04/15/2017 
 
PURPOSE:   
To ensure an effective discharge plan is in place to meet the patient’s continuing healthcare needs post-
hospitalization. Discharge planning is an integral part of the hospital’s provision of care, involving the 
assessment and treatment of the patient’s medical, psychological, and social needs that contribute to continuity 
of care to ensure a safe recovery post-hospitalization.  The Case Management staff recognizes the relationship 
between psychosocial factors, the patients’ health/illness, the influence these factors have on the patient’s 
recovery, and the potential for re-hospitalization. The goal is to provide all patients with discharge planning that 
creates a continuity of care that includes the input and coordination of the interdisciplinary care team, the 
primary care practitioner, the patient and their family, and/or primary care givers. 
 
POLICY: 

1. Discharge planning will be conducted with all in-patients admitted to Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
(NIHD), or upon request from the Emergency Department or Post-Anesthesia Care Unit (PACU), 
according to state and federal regulatory requirements. 

2. Discharge planning will be conducted by either a Registered Nurse (RN) or a Social Worker trained in 
the process of effective discharge planning and case management.  Supervision and oversight of the 
discharge planning process shall be by the Chief Nursing Officer (CNO). 

3. A hospitalized patient and the patient’s family and/or caregiver shall be given the opportunity to 
participate in the discharge planning process. 

4. Discharge planning evaluations will be initiated upon admission. 
5. Patients shall be discharged based upon attainment of patient care goals as evident in the 

interdisciplinary plan of patient care and access to sufficient resources. 
6. The entire interdisciplinary care team shall have input into the discharge planning process, including 

physicians, nursing staff, rehabilitation staff, social services/case managers, respiratory staff, 
pharmacists, etc. 

7. The discharge planning needs of the patient shall be reassessed daily during the Interdisciplinary Care 
Team meetings.  Changing needs of the patient or family/caregivers shall be taken into consideration 
and reflected in the discharge plan and documentation. 

8. If discharge plans include transferring a patient to another facility, NIHD will collaborate with the 
patient and/or family to make arrangements for the transfer, and include all necessary medical 
information and documentation to facilitate continuity of care. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20 of 143



 

Page 2 of 4 
Discharge Planning for the Hospitalized Patient 

PROCEDURE: 
1. Screening- Admission screenings will take place for all admitted patients to identify risk factors 

that have the potential to create adverse health consequences to the patient post-hospitalization. 
Screening risk factors can include bio, psycho, social components such as diagnosis, age, lack of 
adequate resources or sources of support, co-existing illnesses, behavioral health issues, etc. 
 

2. Evaluation- This process involves interviewing the patient, family, and/or caregivers to determine 
their needs, preferences, challenges, resources and how they are coping and adjusting to the illness 
and hospitalization.  The interview should attempt to ask the following questions and gather the 
following information: 

A. Current living situation, including identifying any potential safety issues  
B. Sources of support, both financial resources and family/caregiver assistance. 
C. Upon discharge, will the patient be capable of performing their own ADL’s; if unable a plan 

for necessary types of assistance will be arranged. 
D. What equipment will the patient need if they are returning home? 
E. What referrals are important to facilitate a safe and effective discharge? (e.g. nursing home 

placement, out-pt. rehabilitation, home health services, etc.) 
F. Will the patient’s insurance cover post-discharge services? 
G. Do they have transportation to follow up appointments? 
H. Are there any safety concerns with this patient? (e.g. fall risk, negligent spouse or caregiver, 

can the patient continue to safely drive) 
I. Are the patient’s family and /or caregivers competent, capable and willing to help provide 

care or assistance to the patient?  How much, for how long? 
J. What changes have occurred in the patient’s physical or cognitive functioning that will 

require adjustments in the services or support provided to the patient post-discharge? (e.g. 
has the pt. moved from one level of care to another?) 

K. Has there been a change in the patient’s cognitive functioning and executive decision-making 
ability?  Are they capable of making sound decisions regarding their post-hospital needs? 

L. Does the patient have a behavioral health problem that adds a layer of complexity to their 
hospitalization and creates additional risk to their health and safety, such as a psychiatric 
diagnosis, suicidal ideations, or a history of substance abuse and dependence?  If so, are they 
motivated to address these issues as part of the discharge plan? 

M. Does the patient and family and/or caregiver demonstrate good insight and awareness into 
the nature and contributing factors that led to the patient’s hospitalization? 

N. Does the patient and family and/or caregivers have realistic expectations about post-
hospitalization and recovery? 

O. Are the patient and family coping effectively with the patient’s illness, hospitalization or 
diagnosis? 

P. What behavioral health needs do the patient and family and/or caregiver need in order to 
improve their functioning, enhance their hospital experience, or to ensure the patient’s 
continuity of care upon discharge? (e.g. crisis intervention, brief grief counseling, education 
about illness or diagnosis) 

Q. Does the patient have an Advanced Directive or a Durable Power of Attorney?  Make sure 
it’s on file and up to date. 

R. If the patient is a minor, are they eligible and meet the criteria for California Children 
Services? 

S. If the patient is a minor, was the cause of the injury or illness the result of neglect or potential 
abuse on the part of an adult or legal guardian?  While it is not our responsibility to 
investigate and decide the causes of such incidents leading to illness or injury, we are 

Page 21 of 143



 

Page 3 of 4 
Discharge Planning for the Hospitalized Patient 

mandated reporters required to follow the state laws, which includes filing a verbal and 
written report to California Child Protective Services. 

T. Any bio, psycho, social factors that have the potential to complicate a successful discharge in 
a timely manner, or create risk to the patient for continuity of care. 

 
3. Development- This process requires that the case manager/social worker take the results and 

findings of the evaluation and present them to the Interdisciplinary Care Team for additional 
information and get their input, based upon their assessments or observations.  

A. All discharge plans will be developed in collaboration with the patient, the patient’s family 
and/or caregivers, and the attending physician.  Discharge options will be considered and 
reviewed. 

B. The patient’s family members and/or caregivers may attend a care conference so that the care 
team can provide education and clarify goals and resources needed for an effective discharge 
and continuity of care. 

C. The attending physician will provide clarity and leadership about anticipated time frames for 
discharge and specific needs for the patient based upon diagnosis, recovery process, the 
patient’s response to treatments and therapies, on-going medical needs, and continuity of 
care. 

D. The Case Manger or social worker will take any new or additional information obtained from 
the Interdisciplinary Care Team and incorporate it into the discharge plan. 

E. If the Interdisciplinary Care Team decides to transition the patient to a Swing Bed, the Case 
Manager or Social Worker are responsible for providing a written invitation to the daily 
interdisciplinary meeting for the portion of the meeting that the patient’s care plan is 
discussed. 

F. Once a plan has been developed and agreed upon by the patient (whenever possible), their 
family and/or caregiver, and the Interdisciplinary Care Team the Case Manager/social worker 
will document the plans under the Medical Record Discharge Planning within the E.H.R. and 
begin the Implementation phase of discharge planning. 

G. Discharge plans will be reassessed daily with the Interdisciplinary Care Team so that changes 
in the care level or needs of the patient can be adequately modified in the discharge plan. 

H. The discharge planning process will assess and take into consideration patterns or trends that 
contributed to a patient readmission if prior hospitalization was within the last 30 days when 
appropriate. 

 
4. Implementation- This process will be driven by the findings and results of the evaluation and will 

often include tasks such as: 
A. Calling various skilled nursing homes seeking short or long term placement for the patient, 

and making arrangements for patient transfers, along with relevant medical records necessary 
to provide continuity of care. 

B. If the patient is returning home, referring for home health services or durable medical 
equipment, if indicated. 

C. Researching alternative housing options if patient needs additional assistance but does not 
meet the criteria for skilled placement. (e.g. Assisted living, or family members) 

D. Ensuring the patient and family are aware of all follow-up appointment for the patient. 
E. Collaborating discharge plans and patient’s post-hospitalization needs with other community 

providers (e.g. Toiyabe clinic and case management services) 
F. Making referrals for additional out-patient sources of support which could include referrals 

for drug and alcohol treatment, on-going counseling services, resources for homelessness, 
psychiatric evaluations, or other community based services. 

Page 22 of 143



 

Page 4 of 4 
Discharge Planning for the Hospitalized Patient 

a. In Home Supportive Services  
i. Before the discharge from an acute care hospital of a Medi-Cal beneficiary 

diagnosed with a terminal illness, the hospital's designated case manager must 
evaluate the patient's likely need for posthospital services and their ability to 
access those services. 

 For patients anticipated to need in-home personal care, the hospital case 
manager or discharge planner must ask the patient, or another person 
authorized to make health care decisions for the patient, if they are 
interested in receiving information about the in-home supportive services 
(IHSS) program. 

 If the patient or authorized person expresses interest in receiving the IHSS 
information, the hospital case manager or discharge planner must provide 
the information, including how to initiate the application process and the 
option for a family member to provide care as an IHSS provider, subject to 
the IHSS provider enrollment conditions. 

ii. If the patient seeks to apply for services under the IHSS program, the hospital 
case manager or discharge planner must, as appropriate, communicate to the 
patient's primary care physician the patient's interest in applying for IHSS to 
support the timely completion of the health care certification form 

G. Provide education (within scope of practice) to patients and their family/caregivers regarding 
rationale about discharge disposition, importance of adherence to discharge plan, and follow 
up with aftercare. 

H. Daily documentation should be made in the patient’s electronic medical record indicating 
progress made towards discharge plans or any changes or updates made to the discharge 
plan.  

I. Each patient will receive a Discharge Instructions Packet that will include: 
a. Discharge instructions and directions related to discharge disposition. 
b. New Prescriptions and medication lists with directions 
c. Educational materials 
d. Relevant community resources, including contact information for Skilled Nursing 

facilities in the region, and home health services. 
     
REFERENCES: 

1. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services; CMS Manual, 
Conditions of Participation 482.43(a) – 482.43 (e) 

2. California Department of Public Health, Senate Bill 675: Hospital Discharge Planning and Family 
Caregivers; Health and Safety Code section 1262.5, Chapter 494 

3. The Comprehensive Accreditation Manual for Critical Care Access Hospitals as published by The Joint 
Commission; Standards PC.04.01.03; PC.04.02.01; PC.04.01.05 

4. California State Assembly AB 1005, Chapter 346 
 
CROSS-REFERENCE P&P: 

1. Documentation of Case Management Services  
2. Discharge Medications  
3. Leaving Hospital Against Medical Advice Refusal of Treatment or Transfer  
4. Management of Discharge Disputes from Medicare Patients  

 
Supersedes: v.2 Discharge Planning for the Hospitalized Patient 

 

Page 23 of 143



 

1 
Informed Consent Policy - Practitioner's Responsibility 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
CLINICAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
 
 

Title: Informed Consent Policy - Practitioner's Responsibility 
Owner: Medical Staff Director Department: Medical Staff 
Scope: Medical Staff and Advanced Practice Providers 
Date Last Modified: 03/06/2023 Last Review Date: 05/07/2025 Version: 2 
Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors  Original Approval Date: 11/18/2020 

 
PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to describe: 

1. When informed consent must be obtained, and when exceptions can be made in an emergency; 
2. Who has responsibility for obtaining informed consent; and  
3. The properly executed informed consent process, which ensures that the patient, or patient’s 

representative, is provided with the information and disclosures necessary to enable him/her to evaluate 
whether or not to submit to complicated (invasive) medical or surgical treatment. 

 
DEFINITIONS: 

1. Informed Consent – a process of communication between the patient, or the patient’s legal 
representative, and the healthcare practitioner in which the nature of the illness and the purpose of the 
procedure are discussed and an opportunity for questions is allowed. 

 
POLICY: 

1. Informed consent must be obtained by the practitioner(s) responsible for the treatment or procedure prior 
to the procedure being performed.   

a. Separate consents must be obtained and documented by each practitioner when: 
i. Different practitioners are performing different aspects of the same operative procedure, 

each with different risks requiring different skill sets; or 
ii. Multiple sequential procedures will be performed on the same date by different 

practitioners.  
2. The informed consent discussion must include the following: 

a. The nature of the procedure or treatment; 
b. The risks, complications, and expected benefits or effects of the procedure or treatment; and 
c. Any alternatives to the procedure or treatment and the risks and benefits, including the 

consequences of non-treatment. 
3. Procedures which require informed consent are complex in nature and include, but are not limited to: 

a. Procedures involving penetration of the skin, with the exception of drawing blood or establishing 
peripheral access; 

b. Endoscopic procedures; 
c. Intraluminal procedures including transesophageal procedures, but excluding placement of 

transurethral bladder catheters, diagnostic cystoscopes, and nasogastric tubes; 
d. Procedures which are considered irreversible.  

i. Special procedures, such as elective sterilization, have a consent process described in the 
policy Surgical Procedures that Require Special Consents. 

Page 24 of 143



 

2 
Informed Consent Policy - Practitioner's Responsibility 

4. Documentation that informed consent was obtained must be included in the patient’s medical record. 
Any special circumstances should also be documented. 

5. A consent remains effective until the patient revokes it or until circumstances change so as to materially 
affect the nature of, or the risks of, the procedure and/or the alternatives to the procedure to which the 
patient consented.  

6. In the event of an emergency, a procedure that would ordinarily require consent may be performed 
without informed consent.  All of the following criteria must be met in order to qualify as an emergency 
situation: 

a. The patient’s life or health is in immediate and substantial danger. 
b. The patient is incapable of consenting. 
c. Any potential risks associated with the treatment are materially outweighed by the potential 

benefits associated with treatment. 
7. Informed consent from patients with Limited English Proficiency will be obtained and documented 

with the participation of a qualified interpreter. 
8. For informed consent of minors, see policy Minors with Legal Authority to Consent. 

 
PROCEDURE: 

1. Northern Inyo Healthcare District has certain approved forms (e.g., Informed Consent to Surgery or 
Special Procedure Form) that may be used to document that informed consent was obtained.  

2. The patient, or patient’s legal representative, must sign and date the form.  
3. The practitioner obtaining informed consent must sign and date the form.  
4. A witness must sign the form to confirm that the patient, or patient’s legal representative, is the person 

signing. The witness signature does not confirm that the informed consent process has taken place. 
5. While the completion of the form may be delegated to a staff member as appropriate, the practitioner 

performing the procedure is responsible for carrying out the informed consent process and addressing 
any questions that a patient may have. 

 
REFERENCES: 

1. California Hospital Association. California Hospital Consent Manual 2017.  
2. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, Hospital Condition of Participation §482.51(b)(2), 

§482.13(b)(2) and §482.24(c)(4)(v). 
3. Gossman W, Thornton I, Hipskind JE. “Informed Consent.” July 2019. Treasure Island (FL): StatPearls 

Publishing. 
4. Joint Commission. “Informed Consent: More than getting a signature.” Issue 21. February 2016. 
5. University of Connecticut Health. “Clinical Informed Consent – Obtaining and Documenting.” Policy 

2015-03. Retrieved March 23, 2018. 
 
RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION: 

1. Consents are maintained within the patient’s medical record and are retained for a minimum of 15 years 
for adults and 25 years for minors. 

 
CROSS REFERENCE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES: 

1. Consent for Medical Treatment  
2. Minors with Legal Authority to Consent  
3. Surgical Procedures that Require Special Consents  
4. Informed Consent (Nursing); Lippincott Procedures  

Supersedes: v.1 Informed Consent Policy - Practitioner's Responsibility 
 

Page 25 of 143



Page 26 of 143



Page 27 of 143



Page 28 of 143



Page 29 of 143



Page 30 of 143



Page 31 of 143



Page 32 of 143



Page 33 of 143



Page 34 of 143



Page 35 of 143



Page 36 of 143



Page 37 of 143



Page 38 of 143



Page 39 of 143



Page 40 of 143



Page 41 of 143



Page 42 of 143



Page 43 of 143



Page 44 of 143



Page 45 of 143



Page 46 of 143



Page 47 of 143



Page 48 of 143



Page 49 of 143



Page 50 of 143



Page 51 of 143



Page 52 of 143



Page 53 of 143



Page 54 of 143



Page 55 of 143



Page 56 of 143



Page 57 of 143



Page 58 of 143



Page 59 of 143



Page 60 of 143



Page 61 of 143



Page 62 of 143



Page 63 of 143



Page 64 of 143



Page 65 of 143



Page 66 of 143



Page 67 of 143



Page 68 of 143



Page 69 of 143



Page 70 of 143



Page 71 of 143



Page 72 of 143



Page 73 of 143



Page 74 of 143



Page 75 of 143



Page 76 of 143



Page 77 of 143



Page 78 of 143



Page 79 of 143



Page 80 of 143



Page 81 of 143



Page 82 of 143



Page 83 of 143



Page 84 of 143



Page 85 of 143



Page 86 of 143



Page 87 of 143



Page 88 of 143



Page 89 of 143



Page 90 of 143



Page 91 of 143



Page 92 of 143



Page 93 of 143



Page 94 of 143



Page 95 of 143



Page 96 of 143



Page 97 of 143



Page 98 of 143



Page 99 of 143



Page 100 of 143



Page 101 of 143



Page 102 of 143



Page 103 of 143



Page 104 of 143



Page 105 of 143



Page 106 of 143



Page 107 of 143



Page 108 of 143



Page 109 of 143



Page 110 of 143



Page 111 of 143



Page 112 of 143



Page 113 of 143



Page 114 of 143



Page 115 of 143



Page 116 of 143



Page 117 of 143



Page 118 of 143



Page 119 of 143



Page 120 of 143



Page 121 of 143



Page 122 of 143



Page 123 of 143



Page 124 of 143



Page 125 of 143



Page 126 of 143



Page 127 of 143



Page 128 of 143



Page 129 of 143



Page 130 of 143



Page 131 of 143



Page 132 of 143



Page 133 of 143



Page 134 of 143



Page 135 of 143



Page 136 of 143



Page 137 of 143



Page 138 of 143



Page 139 of 143



Page 140 of 143



Page 141 of 143



Page 142 of 143



Page 143 of 143


	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	Agenda

	Consent Agenda
	Meeting Minutes - April 16, 2025
	Credit Card Statement - April 2025
	Condition Code 44
	Discharge Planning for the Hospitalized Patient
	Informed Consent Policy – Practitioner’s Responsibility
	Management of the Behavioral Health Patient (5150 and non-5150)
	Medical Staff Department Policy – Outpatient Medicine
	Patient Safety Attendant or 1:1 Staffing Guidelines
	Patient Valuables
	Plan for the Provision of Social Services at NIHD
	Utility System Failure-Elevator
	Pharmacy Hazardous Drugs Receiving, Storage, Compounding and Transporting

	Cybersecurity
	Cybersecurity - Term Sheet

	Board Self-Assesment
	2025 Board Self-Assessment Summary

	Marketing Report
	Marketing Report

	Quarterly Compliance Report
	Quarterly Compliance Report

	Chief Financial Officer Report
	Department Update
	CFO Report Financial Summary and Operation Insights - March 2025
	NIHD Financial Summary March 2025
	NIHD KPIs FYE March 2025 
	NIHD Financial Update March 2025
	NIHD Financial Statements Mar 2025


